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is a violation of 19 U.S.C. 1337 by
Metrologic Instruments, Inc. and Metro
(Suzhou) Technologies Co., Ltd. in the
above-captioned investigation. The
investigation is terminated.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Paul
M. Bartkowski, Esq., Office of the
General Counsel, U.S. International
Trade Commission, 500 E Street, SW.,
Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202)
708-5432. Copies of non-confidential
documents filed in connection with this
investigation are or will be available for
inspection during official business
hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.) in the
Office of the Secretary, U.S.
International Trade Commission, 500 E
Street, SW., Washington, DC 20436,
telephone (202) 205-2000. General
information concerning the Commission
may also be obtained by accessing its
Internet server at http://www.usitc.gov.
The public record for this investigation
may be viewed on the Commission’s
electronic docket (EDIS) at http://
edis.usitc.gov. Hearing-impaired
persons are advised that information on
this matter can be obtained by
contacting the Commission’s TDD
terminal on (202) 205-1810.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: This
investigation was instituted on October
26, 2005, based on a complaint filed by
Symbol Technologies Inc. (“Symbol”) of
Holtsville, New York. The complaint, as
amended, alleged violations of section
337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 (19 U.S.C.
1337) in the importation into the United
States, the sale for importation, and the
sale within the United States after
importation of certain laser bar code
scanners or scan engines, components
thereof, or products containing the
same, by reason of infringement of
various claims of United States Patent
Nos. 5,457,308 (“‘the 308 patent”);
5,545,889 (‘“‘the 889 patent”); 6,220,514
(“the ’514 patent”); 5,262,627 (“‘the ’627
patent”); and 5,917,173 (“the *173
patent”). The complaint named two
respondents: Metro Technologies Co.,
Ltd. of Suzhou, China; and Metrologic
Instruments, Inc. of Blackwood, New
Jersey (collectively, “Metrologic”).

On January 29, 2007, the ALJ issued
an initial determination (“ID”’) finding a
violation of Section 337 in the
importation of certain laser bar code
scanners and scan engines, components
thereof, and products containing the
same, in connection with certain
asserted claims. The ID also issued
monetary sanctions against Respondents
for discovery abuses. Complainant,
Respondents, and the Commission
investigative attorney (IA) each filed
petitions for review of the ID on
February 8, 2007. They each filed

responses to each other’s petitions on
February 16, 2007.

On February 21, 2007, the
Commission extended the deadline for
determining whether to review the
subject ID by fifteen (15) days, to March
30, 2007. On March 30, 2007, the
Commission determined to review the
final ID in part. Specifically, the
Commission determined to review: (1)
The construction of “single, unitary,
flexural component” in the "173 patent,
and related issues of infringement,
domestic industry, and validity; (2) the
construction of “oscillatory support
means” in the ’627 patent, and related
issues of infringement, domestic
industry, and validity; (3) the
construction of claims containing the
so-called “central area” limitations in
the ’889 patent, and related issues of
infringement, domestic industry, and
validity; (4) the construction of the
“scan fragment” limitation in the 308
patent; and (5) the construction of the
term ““plurality” in the 308 patent.

Having examined the record of this
investigation, including the ALJ’s final
ID, the Commission has determined to
make the following modifications to the
claim constructions set forth in the final
ID: (1) The “single, unitary, flexural
component” in the *173 patent must
include “portions integral with each
other;” (2) in the ’627 patent, the
“oscillatory support means” must
oscillate; (3) limitations in the ’889
patent containing requirements that the
folding mirror be “near” or “‘adjacent”
the central area of the collecting mirror
allow for the folding mirror to be
positioned close to, and either in front
of or behind, the central area of the
collecting mirror, but not mounted to
the collecting mirror outside of the
central area; (4) “‘scan fragment,” as
used in the ’308 patent, means “‘a scan
that reads less than all of a bar code
symbol and that would have been
discarded before the advent of scan-
stitching techniques;” and (5) the term
“plurality” in the ’308 patent means
“two or more.” These changes do not
affect the ALJ’s findings on validity,
infringement, or domestic industry. The
Commission therefore affirms those
findings, as well as the finding of a
violation of section 337 by Metrologic
with regard to certain asserted claims of
the ’627 and ’173 patents.

The authority for the Commission’s
determination is contained in section
337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as
amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in
section 210.45 of the Commission’s
Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 CFR
210.45).

Issued: May 30, 2007.

By order of the Commission.
Marilyn R. Abbott,
Secretary to the Commission.
[FR Doc. E7-10739 Filed 6—4—07; 8:45 am]|
BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE
COMMISSION

[USITC SE-07-010]

Government in the Sunshine Act
Meeting Notice

AGENCY HOLDING THE MEETING: United
States International Trade Commission.

TIME AND DATE: June 6, 2007 at 11 a.m.

PLACE: Room 101, 500 E Street, SW.,
Washington, DC 20436, Telephone:
(202) 205-2000.

STATUS: Open to the public.

MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED: 1. Agenda
for future meetings: None.

2. Minutes.

3. Ratification List.

4. Inv. No. 731-TA-894 (Review)
(Certain Ammonium Nitrate from
Ukraine)—briefing and vote. (The
Commission is currently scheduled to
transmit its determination and
Commissioners’ opinions to the
Secretary of Commerce on or before
June 19, 2007.)

5. Outstanding action jackets: None.

In accordance with Commission
policy, subject matter listed above, not
disposed of at the scheduled meeting,
may be carried over to the agenda of the
following meeting. Earlier notice of this
meeting was not possible.

Issued: May 31, 2007.

By order of the Commission.

William R. Bishop,

Hearings and Meetings Coordinator.

[FR Doc. E7-10793 Filed 6—4—-07; 8:45 am]|
BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

NATIONAL TRANSPORTATION
SAFETY BOARD

Sunshine Act Meeting Agenda

TIME AND DATE: 9:30 a.m., Thursday,
June 14, 2007.

PLACE: NTSB Conference Center, 429
L’Enfant Plaza, SW., Washington, DC
20594.

STATUS: The two items are open to the
public.
MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED:

7896 Pipeline Accident Brief and
Safety Recommendation Letters—
Anhydrous Ammonia Pipeline Rupture
Near Kingman, Kansas, October 27,
2004.
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7856 A Marine Accident Report—
Fire Aboard Construction Barge Athena
106, West Cote Blanche Bay, Louisiana,
October 12, 2006.

News Media Contact

Telephone: (202) 314-6100.
Individuals requesting specific
accommodations should contact Chris
Bisett at (202) 314-6305 by Friday, June
8, 2007.
The public may view the meeting via
a live or archived webcast by accessing
a link under “News & Events” on the
NTSB home page at www.ntsb.gov.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Vicky D’Onofrio, (202) 314-6410.
Dated: June 1, 2007.
Vicky D’Onofrio,
Federal Register Liaison Officer.
[FR Doc. 07-2820 Filed 6—-1-07; 3:05 pm]
BILLING CODE 7533-07-M

NUCLEAR REGULATORY
COMMISSION

[Docket Nos. 50-498 and 50—-499]

STP Nuclear Operating Company;
Notice of Denial of Amendments to
Facility Operating Licenses and
Opportunity for Hearing

The U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission (NRC or the Commission)
has denied a request by STP Nuclear
Operating Company (licensee) for
amendments to Facility Operating
Licenses, which are numbered NPF-76
and NPF-80, issued to the licensee for
operation of the South Texas Project,
Unit 1 and Unit 2, respectively, located
in Matagorda County, Texas.

Notice of Consideration of Issuance of
these amendments was not published in
the Federal Register.

The licensee requested the
amendments by letter dated February
28, 2006. The purpose of the licensee’s
amendment request was to revise the
Technical Specifications to allow
extension of the integrated leakage rate
(Type A) test interval from 15 years to
20 years, while adequately testing the
impact of the aging degradation of the
containment pressure boundary
components.

The NRC staff has concluded that the
licensee’s request cannot be granted.
The licensee was notified of the
Commission’s denial of the proposed
change by a letter dated May 29, 2007.

By 30 days from the date of
publication of this notice in the Federal
Register, the licensee may demand a
hearing with respect to the denial
described above. Any person whose
interest may be affected by this

proceeding may file a written petition
for leave to intervene pursuant to the
requirements of 10 CFR 2.309.

A request for hearing or petition for
leave to intervene must be filed with the
Secretary of the Commission, U.S.
Nuclear Regulatory Commission,
Washington, DC 20555-0001. Attention:
Rulemakings and Adjudications Staff, or
may be delivered to the Commission’s
Public Document Room (PDR), located
at One White Flint North, Public File
Area O1 F21, 11555 Rockville Pike (first
floor), Rockville, Maryland, by the
above date. Because of potential
disruptions in delivery to mail to U.S.
Government offices, it is requested that
petitions for leave to intervene and
requests for hearing be transmitted to
the Secretary of the Commission either
by means of facsimile transmission to
301-415-1101 or by e-mail to
hearingdocket@nrc.gov. A copy of any
petitions should also be sent to the
Office of the General Counsel, U.S.
Nuclear Regulatory Commission,
Washington, DC 20555-0001, and
because of potential disruptions in
delivery of mail to the U.S. Government
offices, it is requested that copies be
transmitted either by means of facsimile
transmission to 301-415—3725 or by e-
mail to OGCMailCenter@nrc.gov. A copy
of any petitions should also be sent to
A. H. Gutterman, Esq., Morgan, Lewis,
& Bockius, 1111 Pennsylvania Avenue,
NW., Washington, DC 20004, attorney
for the licensee.

For further details with respect to this
action, see (1) The application for
amendment dated February 28, 2006,
and (2) the Commission’s letter to the
licensee dated May 29, 2007.

Documents may be examined, and/or
copied for a fee, at the NRC’s PDR,
located at One White Flint North, Public
File Area O1 F21, 11555 Rockville Pike
(first floor), Rockville, Maryland, and
will be accessible electronically through
the Agencywide Documents Access and
Management System’s Public Electronic
Reading Room link at the NRC Web site
http://www.nre.gov/reading-rm/
adams.html. Persons who do not have
access to ADAMS or who encounter
problems in accessing documents
located in ADAMS should contact the
NRC PDR Reference staff by telephone
at 1-800-397—-4209, 301-415—-4737, or
by e-mail to pdr@nrc.gov.

Dated at Rockville, Maryland, this 29th day
of May, 2007.

For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.
Timothy J. McGinty,

Acting Director, Division of Operating Reactor
Licensing, Office of Nuclear Reactor
Regulation.

[FR Doc. E7-10787 Filed 6—4—07; 8:45 am]|
BILLING CODE 7590-01-P

NUCLEAR REGULATORY
COMMISSION

Sunshine Federal Register Notice;
Agency Holding the Meetings: Nuclear
Regulatory Commission

DATES: Weeks of June 4, 11, 18, 25, July
2,9, 2007.

PLACE: Commissioners’ Conference
Room, 11555 Rockville Pike, Rockville,
Maryland.

STATUS: Public and Closed.

MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED:

Week of June 4, 2007.

Thursday, June 7, 2007

1:30 p.m. Meeting with the Advisory
Committee on Reactor Safeguards
(ACRS) (Public Meeting) (Contact: Frank
Gillespie, 301-415-7360)

This meeting will be webcast live at
the Web address—www.nre.gov.

Week of June 11, 2007—Tentative

There are no meetings scheduled for
the Week of June 11, 2007.

Week of June 18, 2007—Tentative

There are no meetings scheduled for
the Week of June 18, 2007.

Week of June 25, 2007—Tentative

There are no meetings scheduled for
the Week of June 25, 2007.

Week of July 2, 2007—Tentative

There are no meetings scheduled for
the Week of July 2, 2007.

Week of July 9, 2007—Tentative

There are no meetings scheduled for
the Week of July 9, 2007.

* * * * *

* The schedule for Commission
meetings is subject to change on short
notice. To verify the status of meetings
call (recording)—(301) 415-1292.
Contact person for more information:
Michelle Schroll, (301) 415-1662.

* * * * *

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: Affirmation of
“USEC Inc. (American Centrifuge Plant),
LBP-07-06 (Initial Decision
Authorizing License), Geoffrey Sea
Letter ‘in preparation of late-filed
contentions’” tentatively scheduled on
May 30, 2007, was cancelled.

*

* * * *
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